
  

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, October 21, 2013 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
6:30 p.m. City Council Work Session regarding City Administrator Recruitment Process 
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting (Community Center – North End) 

 
CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Vigil 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
a. Presentation of Deed for Disc Golf Course by the Ford Family Institute 
 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for 
Recognition” form.  Forms are on the table at the back of the room. 
Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. October 7, 2013 City Council Action Minutes 
 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which are routine in 
nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any item placed on the 
Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the time a vote is taken.  All 
remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This 
motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll the council members individually by a roll call 
vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call 
vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting 
materials.  A citizen wishing to review these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, 
or the Stayton Public Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 
 
The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations please contact Alissa Angelo, 
Deputy City Recorder at (503) 769-3425. 
 
 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
October 21, 2013 



  

PUBLIC HEARING – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Oregon Parks and Recreation Grant – Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Agreement Action 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Resolution No. 904, a Resolution Updating the Facility Use Rules   Action 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
Resolution No. 903, a Resolution Amending the Wastewater Systems   Action 
Development Charge (SDC) to add a Mill Creek Sewer Project  
Reimbursement Fee 
a. Staff Report – David Kinney 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Christine Shaffer     Informational 
a. September 2013 Monthly Finance Department Report 

 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens      Informational 
a. September 2013 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Dave Kinney     Informational 
a. September 2013 Operating Report 
b. Stayton Riverfront Park – Five Year Update 
c. Burnett Street Fence 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. September 2013 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Louise Meyers     Informational 
a. September 2013 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR         
a. Appointment of Janai Hill to the Planning Commission 

 
 

Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
October 21, 2013 



  

 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
a. Review of City Charter 
 
ADJOURN 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
October 21, 2013 



  

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

OCTOBER 2013

Monday October 21 City Council Work Session 6:30 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Monday October 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Monday October 28 City Council Executive Session 5:30 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Monday October 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

NOVEMBER 2013

Monday Nov 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday Nov 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Friday Nov 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday Nov 11 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF VETERANS DAY 

Tuesday Nov 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday Nov 12 Police Advisory Board 6:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Monday Nov 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday Nov 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday Nov 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Thursday Nov 28 

Friday Nov 29 
CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF THANKSGIVING 

DECEMBER 2013

Monday Dec 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Tuesday Dec 3 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Tuesday Dec 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Friday Dec 13 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday Dec 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday Dec 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Wednesday Dec 25 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF CHRISTMAS 

 

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
October 21, 2013 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 1 of 2 
October 7, 2013 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

October 7, 2013 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:06 P.M.         Time End:  8:16 P.M. 

ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAFF 
Mayor Scott Vigil Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder
Councilor Emily Gooch Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development
Councilor Catherine Hemshorn David Kinney, Public Works Director (excused)
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Louise Meyers, Library Director (excused)
Councilor Henry Porter Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Brian Quigley Christine Shaffer, Finance Director
  David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused)

 
AGENDA ACTIONS

REGULAR MEETING
Presentations / Comments from the Public  
a. Donation to Park Fund from Car Show Committee by Chair 

Alan Kingsley 
 

 
b. Presentation by Marion County District Attorney Walt Beglau 

and Executive Director of Mid‐Valley Women’s Crisis Service 
Jayne Downing 
 

c. Proclamation by Mayor Vigil declaring October 2013 as 
Domestic Violence Awareness Month 

 

 
Mr. Kingsley was unable to attend; this will be 
postponed until the October 21 meeting. 
 
 
Brief presentation regarding Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month by Mr. Beglau and Ms. 
Downing. 
 
Mayor Vigil read the Proclamation.

Announcements 
d. Additions to the Agenda 
 
e. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
 
None 
 

Consent Agenda 
a. September 16, 2013 City Council Action Minutes 

 
Motion from Councilor Gooch, seconded by 
Councilor Porter, to approve the consent agenda. 
Motion passed 5:0.

Public Hearings None
Unfinished Business  
a. Ordinance No. 958, Amending Stayton Municipal Code Title 10, 

Chapters 10.04, 10.08, 10.12, 10.16, 10.36, and 10.40 Relating 
to Vehicles and Traffic 

 
 

 
Motion from Councilor Hemshorn, seconded by 
Councilor Gooch, to enact Ordinance No. 958 
relating to SMC Title 10, sections 10.04, 10.08, 
10.12, 10.16, 10.36, 10.40 as amended. Motion 
passed 5:0.  



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes                    Page 2 of 2 
October 7, 2013 

New Business None
Staff / Commission Reports 
a. Resolution No. 903, a Resolution Amending the Wastewater 

Systems Development Charge (SDC) to add a Mill Creek Sewer 
Project Reimbursement Fee 

 
Councilor Niegel requested staff provide the 
Council with the City of Sublimity’s System 
Development Charges.

Presentations / Comments From the Public None
Business from the City Administrator 
a. Wave Broadband Rate Increase 
b. October 14  Work Session  th

 

 
No discussion. 
No discussion.

Business from the Mayor None
Business from the Council Councilor Quigley inquired about the status of the 

YMCA’s recruitment of a Pool Manager. Ms. 
Shaffer stated she had not been updated by the 
YMCA and will contact them again. 

Future Agenda Items 
a. Review of City Charter 

 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 21ST DAY OF OCTOBER 2013, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:      By:     
    A. Scott Vigil, Mayor 
 
Date:     Attest:     

  Christine Shaffer, Interim City Administrator 
             
Date:    Transcribed by:              
      Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder



 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
Acceptance of OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Page 1 of 4  

 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
    
THRU:  Interim City Administrator Christine Shaffer  
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Grant Acceptance - Pioneer Park Improvements  

$387,900    Oregon Parks & Recreation Department 
Local Government Grant 

              
 
ISSUE 
 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not to accept a $ 387,900 grant from the Oregon 
Parks and Recreation Department (OPRD) to rehabilitate Pioneer Park. 
 
ENCLOSURES: 
 
 1. Grant Agreement #LG-13-003 
 2. West Entry Refinement Drawing – February 2013.   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
A. Parks & Recreation Master Plan (2004):   
 
The Stayton Parks and Recreation Master Plan was adopted by the City in 2004 and is adopted as 
a capital facilities plan for the Stayton Comprehensive Plan.   The 2004 plan includes 
recommendations to upgrade Pioneer Park.  
 
B. Pioneer Park Master Plan Update (2011-2012): 
 
In 2011, the City retained landscape architect Brian Bainnson, Quatrefoil, Inc. to prepare a more 
detailed conceptual plan to guide future development of Pioneer Park.  The Parks Board worked 
with Mr. Bainnson and developed 3 conceptual drawings.  The Parks Board held several “open 

 



 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
Acceptance of OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Page 2 of 4  
 

houses” in 2011 and took the plan to various events to solicit public comment.   A final DRAFT 
was prepared in November 2011 and the City solicited additional public comments in December 
2011/January 2012.   In February 2012, the Parks Board approved the plan and approved a 
prioritized list of improvements.  They reaffirmed their priorities in February 2013 but modified 
the west entry design to improve circulation from E. Marion Street and enhance the drop-off area.  
This is shown in the attached refinement drawing.    
 
On February 25, 2013, the Stayton Planning Commission reviewed and approved the conceptual 
plan and found it generally complies with the City’s land use requirements.   If funding is secured, 
the City will need to submit a detailed development plan to the Planning Commission for approval. 
 
C. OPRD Local Government Grant Application 
 
In March 2013 the City Council adopted Resolution 896 authorizing the submittal of the grant 
application.  In April 2013, the City applied for a $350,000 local government grant from the 
Oregon Parks and Recreation Department.  After discussions with OPRD staff, the final grant 
application amount was increased to $387,900 without increasing the city’s match.  The total cost 
of the Phase 1 Pioneer Park rehabilitation will be $646,500.   
 
PHASE 1 Improvements that are included in this grant are: 
 
 1. Restrooms:  replace the existing restroom with a new larger restroom 

2. Create a new west entry and drop-off area @ 7th Avenue and E. Marion St. 
3. Develop an event plaza 
4. Add Picnic Shelters  
5. Add Site Amenities – ADA walkways, lighting, tables, benches, trash receptacles 
6. Install associated utilities:  storm drainage, water, sewer, electrical, etc.   

 
The following items are not part of the grant but are shown on the Master Plan.  Funding is not 
available for these elements: 
 
 7. Pedestrian Bridge replacement to Wilderness Park. 

8. Closure of Park Road. 
 9. Addition of an east side parking area. 
 10. Detention/Retention basin at the east end of the park 
 11. Expansion of the west parking area. 
 12. Additional picnic shelter and site amenities. 
 13. Pedestrian bridge connection to the Mill Crossing development 
 14. Pathway improvements 
 
D. Public Comments about the Pioneer Park Master Plan & Park Road Closure   
 
During the spring 2013, the City Council and Public Works staff received a petition from 
neighbors in the Pioneer Meadows subdivision and received written and oral comments about the 
long-range Pioneer Parks Master Plan update.  Concerns were focused on the future closure of 
Park Road, the proposed east-side parking lot, increased park usage and traffic/safety concerns.   
 



 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
Acceptance of OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Page 3 of 4  

In June and July 2013, the Parks Board held two open houses for residents near Pioneer Park.  On 
June 4th, 45+ neighbors attended the open house. Councilor Quigley attended.  Eric Hartill, chair of 
the Parks Board, served as host. Staff made a presentation on the proposed park plan, answered 
questions and received oral and written comments.  On July 2nd, 4 neighbors attended the second 
open house.  Parks Board members and the citizens informally talked about the plans, added 
written comments to the design plans and answered questions.  The public works staff has received 
a petition regarding the park road closure and east parking lot, letters from several property owner 
and emails from neighbors expressing their concerns and ideas with the overall parks design. 

 
Comments were generally supportive of rehabilitating the existing areas of Pioneer Park and 
replacing the restroom.  However, neighbors had several specific concerns that relate to potential 
negative impacts on their homes or their neighborhood.  A few comments focused on the loss of 
the basketball courts and the city’s removal of a facility that serves youth. 

 
Phase 1 Area concerns:     

(1) Loss of parking with reconfiguration of entry. 
(2) Noise from music events 
(3) Ensure access road to Jordan Bridge and homes to the east remains open. 
(4) Elimination of basketball court  
(5) Traffic flow during major events 
(6) Storm drainage design  

 
Phase 2 Area concerns: 

(1) Closure of the road through the park.   Leave open. 
(2) Eliminate or reduce the size of a parking lot on east end of the park.     
(3) Traffic analysis / flow / congestion on neighboring streets 
(4) Public safety and ease of police access / patrol within the park. 
(5) Driveway access from park to Burnett St. via 10th Avenue 

 
E. Public Involvement in Final Design and Approval of Final Design  
 
The staff proposes to spend the next 6 months completing final design, soliciting public comments 
and obtaining Planning Commission approval of the final design.  Construction will occur in 
Summer/Fall 2014.   We propose to retain landscape architect Brian Bainnson, Quatrefoil, Inc., to 
complete the detailed design of the Phase I park facility improvements.   City Engineer John 
Ashley will design the storm drainage and utility improvements.    
 
F. Financing – Local Grant Match Requirements  
 
Once a final design is approved, city staff will proceed developing contracts and managing the 
construction.  Mike Brash will be the City’s construction manager.   Slayden Construction Group 
and Bethel Construction (donor contractors) will provide donated services during construction.   
All work must be completed by October 2015.  
 
 November 2013 – May 2014  Design and Plan Approvals 
 May 2014 – June 2015  Construction 
 
G. Financing – Local Grant Match Requirements:    



 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
Acceptance of OPRD Local Government Grant – Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Page 4 of 4  
 

G. Financing – Local Grant Match Requirements:    
 
OPRD requires a 40% local match of $258,600. 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the Budget spreadsheet which shows committed and prospective resources 
for the local match.  To date, the City can identify $196,500 in committed/available local matches.   
 
The voter approved 2012 Local Option Levy includes up to $40,000 to 60,000 for Pioneer Park 
improvements, but only $20,000 is available in the 1st 2 years of the levy.  The City also has 
$65,000 in available Parks SDC funds which can be contributed to the project.  These amounts, 
coupled with in-kind staff contributions, foundation grants and private donations will provide the 
“local match” for the project.   
 
The City will need to raise an additional $62,000 over the next 6 months from other sources:  
foundation grants, in-kind donations, donated contractor labor and materials and individual 
donations to the project.  Based on conversations I have had with a couple of foundation sources, 
potential donor and contractors, I am confident we will fill the funding gap fund.   The staff will be 
applying for foundation grants in the next 6 months to ensure we have the required match amount.   
   
 
PARKS BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Parks Board unanimously recommends the City accept the grant to improve Pioneer Park.   
 
 
DECISION OPTION(S) 
 

1. The City Council may accept the OPRD Local Government Grant in the amount of 
$387,600 and authorize the City Administrator to execute the grant agreement. 

 
2. The City Council may table the issue for additional discussion. 

 
3. The City Council may elect not to accept the grant. 

 
 
MOTION(S) 
 

1. Offer a motion to accept the ORPD Local Government Grant for Pioneer Park 
improvements in the amount of $387,600 and authorize the appropriate city officials to 
sign the grant agreement.   

 
2. Offer a motion to table consideration to the November 4th City Council meeting. 

 
3. Offer a motion to not accept the OPRD Local Government Grant for Pioneer Park 

improvements.   



Pioneer Park 2013 Local Gov't Grant Application

Project Revenues Added Match NO GRANTS

Description Budget Running Total % Committed Needed What if Bdgt

1 A.  Local Government Grant Funding Request 387,900$           60% Added items

2 B.  Sponsor Match
3 Cash Appropriations:  Local Option Levy (1st 2 years) 20,000.00$      407,900$         20,000$             

4 Cash Appropriations:  SDC Fund (over 2 fiscal years) 75,000.00$      482,900$         75,000$             20,000$                

5 Cash Appropriations:  Neitling Fund 5,000.00$        487,900$         5,000$               2,000$                  

6 Cash Appropriations:  Trust Acct - Gift 10,000.00$      497,900$         10,000$             

7 Cash Donations
   Anonymous Donor - $10,000 in 2013, potential in 2014 10,000.00$      507,900$         10,000$               

   Parks Board Fundraiser - $15,000 in 2014 15,000.00$      522,900$         15,000$              15,000$                

8 Donated Equipment
    Bethel Construction - Demolition 3,000.00$        525,900$         3,000$               2,500$                  

    SCG - General Construction 5,000.00$        530,900$         5,000$               

9 Donated Labor   

    Bethel Construction - Demolition 2,000.00$        532,900$         2,000$                

    SCG - Project Management & Coordination 35,000.00$      567,900$         35,000$              4,000$                  

10 Donated Materials
11 Force Account – Equipment 5,000.00$        572,900$         5,000$               1,500$                  

12 Force Account – Labor: Project Mgt/Inspection 10,600.00$      583,500$         10,600$             -$                       

13 Force Account – Labor: Parks Maintenance Staff 8,000.00$        591,500$         8,000$               3,000$                  

14 Force Account – Materials - Irrigation, etc. 3,000.00$        594,500$         3,000$               2,000$                  

15 *State Grant – Other (Name: ____________________)

16 *Other Grants – OCF / Jeld-Wen / Ford / A. J. Frank Family / Other 52,000.00$      646,500$         52,000$              

17 *Other Grant –      

18 B.  TOTAL MATCH FOR SPONSOR 258,600.00$   196,600            62,000.00$        50,000.00$       

Gap  (Needed to Complete Match) 62,000               

19 C. TOTAL PROJECT COST (A+B MUST EQUAL C) 646,500.00$   258,600             





















 

 
City Council Memo – Resolution 904 
October 21, 2013  

 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
   Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution 904 - ADOPTING REVISED RULES 

GOVERNING USE OF THE COMMUNITY CENTER, 
JORDAN BRIDGE, CITY PARKS, AND OTHER CITY 
FACILITIES; AND REPEALING PREVIOUS RULES. 

 
  
 
UPDATES 
 

1. Exclusive Use – The permits will be exclusive and non-transferable from one facility 
to another. 

 
2. YMCA – Update wording to include separate permits for the Salem Family YMCA.  

 
3. Right to Terminate – Add a “Right to Terminate” clause to allow the City to revoke a 

Facility Use Permit at any time during an emergency event or anytime without cause. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve Resolution 904 Adopting Revised 
Rules Governing Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and Other City 
Facilities; and Repealing Previous Rules. 
 
 
 

 
 

 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 1 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

 RESOLUTION NO. 904 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING REVISED RULES GOVERNING USE OF THE COMMUNITY 
CENTER, JORDAN BRIDGE, CITY PARKS, AND OTHER CITY FACILITIES; AND 
REPEALING PREVIOUS RULES. 
 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council desires to adopt revised rules governing the use of the 
Stayton Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City parks, and other community facilities;  
 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council finds that it is in the best interests of the City to adopt rules 
governing the use of public facilities, fee schedules, and related policies;  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton deems it appropriate to repeal Resolution No. 846 as it is 
superseded by this Resolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 

SECTION 1.  Resolution No. 846 is hereby repealed and superseded by this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2.  The RULES GOVERNING THE USE OF CITY OF STAYTON PUBLIC 
FACILITIES appended hereto, designated Exhibit A are hereby adopted. 
 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 21st day of October, 2013. 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 

Signed: _______, 2013 BY:  ________________________________________ 
 A. SCOTT VIGIL, MAYOR 

 
 

Signed: ________, 2013 ATTEST: ________________________________________ 
 CHRISTINE SHAFFER, INTERIM CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

     

DAVID A. RHOTEN, CITY ATTORNEY 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 2 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

 
 
 
       EXHIBIT A. 
 

RULES GOVERNING THE USE OF CITY OF STAYTON PUBLIC FACILITIES 
 

1. PERMITS: 
 

a. A Facility Use Permit is required for exclusive private or public use of any City facility 
including the Community Center, the Jordan Bridge, Tennis Courts (scheduled events 
only), parks (scheduled events only), or other City facilities, except the Stayton Family 
Memorial Pool and the Stayton Public Library Meeting Rooms which require a separate 
rental agreement (described below).  Facility Use Permits may be obtained from the 
Facility Coordinator designated by the City Administrator.  

 
b. The Stayton Family Memorial Pool is operated by the Salem Family YMCA.  The 

YMCA requires a separate Pool Rental Agreement for any exclusive private or public use 
of the Stayton Family Memorial Pool.   

 
c. A separate Library Rental Agreement is required for any exclusive private or public use 

of the Stayton Public Library meeting rooms.  Library Rental Agreements may be 
obtained directly from Library staff. 

 
d. A Facility Use Permit and/or Rental Agreement are not transferable. 

 
e. The City reserves the right to make further stipulations for use prior to issuing a Facility 

Use Permit.  
 

f. The City reserves the right to terminate or immediately revoke a Facility Use Permit or 
Rental Agreement and exclude the users from the building or facility if the user fails to 
comply with these rules, city ordinance or state law.  If the permit is revoked for violating 
these rules, city ordinance or state law any fees paid are non-refundable.   

 
g. The City reserves the right to terminate or revoke a Facility Use Permit or Rental 

Agreement and exclude the users from the building in the event of an emergency if the 
City needs to use the facility for its own use or needs to prohibit use of the facility to 
protect public safety.  If the permit is revoked due to an emergency, the City may refund 
all or a portion of the fees paid by the user. 

 
h. The City reserves the right to terminate any Facility Use Permit or Rental Agreement at 

any time without cause. 
 
2. ALCOHOL USE: 
 

a. Alcoholic beverages may not be served or consumed on any public property or 
premises, unless an exception has been granted by the City.  

b. The City Council may allow the consumption of alcoholic beverages under terms of a 
lease agreement between the City and Lessee. 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 3 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

c. Upon written request from a public agency or non-profit organization, the City 
Administrator may approve a revocable facilities use permit, which permits the 
consumption of alcoholic beverages for a special event or fund-raising activity. 

d. Upon written request from a private party, the City Administrator, or his designee, may 
approve a facilities use permit, which also permits the consumption alcoholic beverages, 
at a private event, such as a wedding, reception or similar activity. 

e. The decision of the City Administrator is final. This is an administrative decision 
enforcing the Council’s policy.  The City’s decision to allow or not allow an applicant to 
have alcoholic beverages will be based on an administrative review of the applicant 
history and experience using other City facilities, the type of event that is proposed, the 
risk of damage to City property and the potential for liability exposure for the City. 

f. The City Administrator may refer any such request to the City Council for consideration.  

g. A non-refundable, alcoholic beverage service permit fee will be charged, in addition to 
the regular application fee charged for a City of Stayton Facility Use Permit. (The 
applicant must be at least 21 years of age.)

  
h. Alcoholic beverages, with the exception of distilled spirits may be served or consumed under 

a facilities use permit. Food and non-alcoholic beverages must also be concurrently served. 
 
i. Serving, possession or consumption of alcoholic beverages is strictly limited to within the 

interior of the Community Center building, the interior of the Stayton Public Library,  and on 
the Jordan Bridge (and must be within 50 feet of the Bridge) or within a designated area of a 
public park or property. All designated areas where Alcohol may be consumed must be 
properly marked with signage stating that “No Alcoholic Beverages Beyond This Point”. 

 
j. OREGON LIQUOR LICENSE CONTROL COMMISSION (OLCC): If an event is open 

to the general public, an OLCC permit may be required. OLCC’s rules must be strictly 
followed and enforced. (If an event requires a special license from the OLCC, the OLCC 
license must be submitted to the City no later than 10 business days prior to the 
scheduled event. For questions regarding whether or not an OLCC license is necessary, 
call OLCC at 503-378-4871.) 

k. An applicant is required to furnish a general liability insurance policy with a liquor rider 
for a minimum of $1,000,000 coverage. The insurance certificate must have an original 
signature; must cover the date(s) of the scheduled event; must name the City of Stayton, 
its elected/appointed officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers as additional 
named insured; and, must be submitted to the City no later than ten (10 business days 
prior to the scheduled event.  

 
l. In addition to the requirements listed below in Section 4. Security, if private security is used 

rather than personnel from the Stayton Police Department, the Chief of Police, or designee, 
must be notified prior to the scheduled event date that a function is occurring and whether 
any special considerations are required.  

 
m. An additional cleaning deposit shall be collected at the time application is made to the City. 

A portion of this additional deposit may be refundable upon inspection by City personnel 
after the event. 

 
n. The applicant/permittee of the scheduled event will be responsible for providing alternate 

transportation to individuals who are visibly intoxicated or impaired. 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 4 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

 
3. RULES: 
 

a. As mandated by applicable Oregon Revised Statutes, smoking in or near any City 
building or on the Jordan Bridge is strictly prohibited. 

 
b. Facility hours are indicated on the Facility Use Permit or Rental Agreement.  If the 

facility is not vacated at the agreed upon time, additional rent, custodial and security time 
will be charged.  Security fees may then be subject to double time pay if using City 
security services. 

 
c. Rent commences to accrue as soon as the facility is made available to the user.  User must 

be aware that buildings such as the Community Center, Library, etc. have multiple daily 
uses and at times only one hour is provided between uses.  Therefore, hours must be 
scheduled in consecutive blocks of time which include time for set-up, the activity, and 
clean-up.  For example, if the user has reserved the Community Center for a function on 
Saturday evening, but has requested access to the building Friday evening to set-up, the 
user will be charged for Friday evening's set-up time, all day Saturday when the building 
is unavailable to other users, and Saturday evening until the building has been vacated. 

 
d. At NO TIME shall a facility or building be left unlocked and unattended.  When in use, 

the Community Center doors must remain closed at all times. 
 

e. The facility will either be opened for the user, or a key will be issued to the authorized 
user.  If the key is not returned to City Hall within five (5) business days after the event, 
the user will be charged a fee for each key not returned.  If any key remains unreturned 
after thirty (30) calendar days following the event, the user will be held responsible for 
all costs associated with re-keying the facility. 

 
f. City inventory is provided for the user’s convenience only.  The user is responsible for its 

reasonable use and safekeeping.  Any City inventory items (tables, chairs, etc.) must be 
cleaned and returned to their proper storage place.  All decorations and garbage must be 
removed.  If the facility itself (or City inventory items) is not returned to its original 
condition, the user will be charged for any additional cleaning required of City personnel 
or for the repair or replacement of any inventory items damaged or misappropriated. The 
user may be charged for excess use of paper products and cleaning supplies such as toilet 
paper and paper towels. 

 
g. Decorations must NOT be attached to the walls or the ceiling of the facility. 

 
h. Climbing on any City furniture is prohibited.  A ladder or step stool is located in the 

custodial closet at the Community Center for user convenience. 
 

i. Music must be kept at levels which do not disturb the reasonable peace and quiet of any 
citizen. If live music/band is used the live music must be concluded by 10:00pm.  
Exceptions may be allowed under certain circumstances.  If noise exceeds reasonable 
sound limits, the City and the Stayton Police Department reserves the right to 
immediately terminate the music and/or revoke the Facility Use Permit or Rental 
Agreement. 

 
j. Candles are permitted inside City facilities ONLY with express written approval stated 

on the Facility Use Permit or Rental Agreement. 
 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 5 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

k. Use of rice, confetti, glitter, small paper articles, or any similar objects used for 
decoration or any other purpose, is prohibited in any facility premises and in the parking 
areas. 

 
l. Use of birdseed is prohibited in any building, but may be used in the parking areas. 

 
m. Facility rental(s) may require a “walkthrough” with City staff; both prior to the use and 

after the use is concluded, during regular City business hours (Monday - Friday, 8 a.m. - 
5 p.m.). 

 
n. The City may require the user to provide combined single limit insurance coverage of 

$1,000,000.  If required by the City, the user must provide the City with a Certificate of 
Insurance naming the City of Stayton as an additional named insured. 

 
o. All City, State and Federal laws must be followed.  Violations of these laws and 

ordinances are subject to appropriate enforcement action. 
 
p. The City and the Stayton Police Department reserve the right to immediately revoke the 

Facility Use Permit without reimbursement to the user for violations of these rules, the 
Facility Use Permit and/or the Rental Agreement(s). 

 
4. RESERVATIONS AND FEES: 
 

a. See City Fee Rental Schedule for current fees for each facility/premises (Attached to 
these Rules (Attachment A) and by this reference incorporated herein. 

 
b. A deposit of 25 percent of the total rental fee, or the entire cleaning fee, whichever is 

greater, will be required to reserve a City facility. 
 

c. An additional fee of 25 percent of the total rental fee will be charged to non-resident 
applicant/permittee’s. 

 
d. All fees must be paid in full ten (10) business days in advance of the date of use. 

 
e. Fees and deposits made for use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City parks, and 

other City facilities are non-refundable unless notice of cancellation is given 10 business 
days prior to the reserved date.  

 
f. Fees are charged for the hours for which the facility is scheduled.  If the user vacates the 

facility before the scheduled time is up, no refund will be remitted for security or rental.  
If a facility is used in excess of the scheduled time, additional rent and security fees will 
be charged to the user. 

 
g. All fees are based on the City Fee Rental Schedule.  If no fee for a particular use is listed 

on the schedule, the City may establish a reasonable fee for use.  
 

h. Security may be required at any of the City facilities/parks. (See “Security” Section 4). 
 

i. Key Deposit - The key deposit for any of the City facilities is made at the time of the key 
pickup and refunded (in cash) when the key is returned.  Key(s) must be returned to City 
Hall no later than five (5) business days after the event. 

 
j. Community Center: 

 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 6 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

i. Rental of the Community Center may be done for a portion of the Community 
Center or for the whole Center.  Rental of the north side does not include kitchen 
privileges. 

 
ii. Cleaning fees are non-refundable. 

 
k. Park’s Facilities: 

 
i. There are no fees for everyday individual or family use. 

 
ii. Groups may rent an entire park or a designated area within a park, excluding the 

Jordan Bridge or Tennis Courts.  A deposit is required that will be returned 
provided no damage occurs and upon inspection the park is clean.  The user is 
responsible for any damage beyond the deposit. Refundable deposits will be 
mailed to the applicant/permittee within 30 days by the City. 

 
l. Jordan Bridge: 

 
 The Jordan Bridge may be rented by itself, but does not include the park. 

 
m. Tennis Courts: 

 
Tennis Courts may be rented for organized events or tournaments. This is for the whole 
Tennis Court facility.  There are no partial rentals of the courts. 

 
n. Swimming Pool, Group Rental Fees: (Contact the Stayton Family Memorial Pool for 

Pool Rental Agreement and applicable fees). 
 

o. Library Meeting Rooms: (Contact the Stayton Public Library Staff for the Library Rental 
Agreement and applicable fees). 

  
p. Fee Reductions and Waivers 

 
i. All events sponsored or co-sponsored by the City of Stayton may use facilities 

(excluding the swimming pool) at no cost.   Except for officially sanctioned 
meetings of established City groups, boards or committees, no request for 
reservation of City facilities for City-sponsored activities shall receive 
preferential consideration over other parties for scheduling.  Reservations shall 
be made on a first-come, first-served basis for all facilities. 
 

ii. Public agencies and non-profit organizations may submit requests to the City 
Administrator or designee to obtain fee reductions or waivers.  The City 
Administrator or designee will review all such requests and the decision to 
approve or to deny the request will be based on the public agency or non-profit 
organization's ability to pay, the number of Stayton residents served, whether the 
facility is available, and the value of the service to the community.  The City 
Administrator or designee may either approve or deny the request. 

 
5. SECURITY: For the purposes of these Rules of use for City of Stayton public facilities: 
 

a. A minimum of two (2) security officers shall be required at dances, weddings, wedding 
receptions, birthday parties, company parties and other similar events, park rented events 
with expected attendance of 200 persons or more, or any other event where the City 
Administrator or designee deems that security is in the best interest of all parties 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 7 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

concerned.  The exact number of officers required will be determined by the Chief of 
Police.  City and City co-sponsored events will not require security provided that City 
staff is present at the event. 

 
b. A minimum of four (4) security officers shall be required at all events where alcohol is 

served.  If the alcoholic beverages will be served only for ceremonial purposes, (e.g. a 
single toast at a wedding or sacramental purpose at a funeral), or for a city-sanctioned or 
sponsored event (e.g. a Library Foundation dinner, Mayor’s reception or Chamber of 
Commerce fundraiser) the Chief of Police may reduce the number of security officers 
required for the event or waive the requirement for security officers.  The decision of the 
Chief of Police is final. 

 
c. Security may be contracted from a private licensed/bonded firm as approved by the 

Stayton Police Department, or, security may be obtained by hiring Stayton Police 
Department personnel, to be determined and assigned by the Chief of Police. 

 
d. If the City of Stayton Police Department personnel are used for the security, the security 

fee is non-refundable if cancellation occurs within ten (10) business days of the event. 
 

e. Remuneration shall be as follows: 
 

i. Private licensed/bonded security firms shall be paid directly as established 
between the user and the security firm. A copy of the security contract shall be 
submitted to the City no less than ten (10) business days prior to the event. 

 
ii. Police personnel shall be paid for at a minimum of three (3) hours as designated 

in the schedule attached. 
 

iii. Payment shall be made to the City a minimum of ten (10) business days prior to 
the event. 

 
iv. If the applicant/user chooses to use City security, the City Administrator or 

designee will coordinate with the Stayton Police Department to schedule 
necessary personnel. 

 
f. Requested event times shall be submitted in writing to the City with the appropriate 

remittance for security costs.  Event times shall not exceed those hours listed in Section 
5, Hours. 

 
6. HOURS: 
 

a. The Parks are generally available for rental on a “first come first serve” basis between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. every day of the week. 

 
b. The Jordan Bridge is generally available for rental on a “first come first serve” basis 

between 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. every day of the week. 
 

c. The Library Meeting Rooms are generally available for rental on a “first come first 
serve” basis between 8:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. every day of the week. 

 
d. The Community Center is generally available for rental on a “first come first serve” 

basis: 
 



  
Resolution No. 904       Page 8 of 8 
Adopting Revised Rules Governing the Use of the Community Center, Jordan Bridge, City Parks and other City 
Facilities; and repeals Resolution 846  

Sunday - Thursday:  8 am-10 pm 
Friday and Saturday  8 am-12 Midnight 

 
e. The City Administrator, or designee, may approve, for good cause, overnight use of a 

park facility.  Such authorization is subject to the applicant properly obtaining a City 
Camping Permit pursuant to SMC 8.12.630.  

 
7. DEFINITIONS: For the purposes of these Rules of use for City of Stayton public facilities. 

a. “Civic” groups include non-profit service organizations which do not restrict membership 
and do not charge fees other than membership dues.  County, state and federal 
government agencies (for uses other than public meetings) are included in this group; 

 
b. “Private” groups are groups, organizations, or meetings not open to the general public, 

such as receptions, private parties, etc.; 
 

c. “Commercial” groups are persons, businesses, and organizations whose activities are 
profit-making in nature.  Political, industrial, and professional organizations are included 
in this group. 
 

8. INSURANCE: The City may require the user to maintain General Liability Insurance Coverage 
($1,000,000).  If required by the City, the user must provide the City with a Certificate of 
Insurance naming the City of Stayton as an additional “Named Insured.” 

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 1 of 4 
October 21, 2013 – City Council Deliberation 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
THRU:  Christine Shaffer, Interim City Administrator 
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
    
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 903 – A Resolution Amending the Wastewater 

Systems Development Charge (SDC) to add a Mill Creek Sewer 
Project Reimbursement Fee 

 
ISSUE 
 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not to adopt a Resolution amending the 
Wastewater Systems Development Charges (SDC) to add a Mill Creek Sewer Project Reim-
bursement Fee. 
 
ENCLOSURES 

1. September 16, 2013 Staff Report 
2. Resolution No. 903 – Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement Fee 
3. 2013 SDC Survey Results for 50+/- Oregon Cities (League of Oregon Cities)  

 
DISCUSSION 
 
The City Council held a public hearing on September 16, 2013 to consider the proposed 
resolution.  The Council tabled the issue to the October 7th meeting and requested staff provide 
data on SDC charges in other Oregon cities.   Enclosed is updated information including a table 
comparing SDC fees in various Oregon cities.  This item will be placed on the October 21st City 
Council agenda for action.   At the September 16th public hearing the City Council asked 
questions and raised several concerns: 
 
1. Notice of the Proposed SDC Increase: 
 

a. Homebuilders’ Association Notice: Notice was provided to the Salem Homebuilders 
Association 60 days in advance of the public hearing.   They contacted the public 



 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 2 of 4 
October 21, 2013 – City Council Deliberation 

works department to get a copy of the proposed SDC fee increase and the City’s 
methodology.  No testimony was submitted. 

 
b. News Media:  On September 11th the Stayton Mail published a front page article ad-

vertising the public hearing and summarizing the proposed increase.  
 

c. Notice to Property Owners: No notice was sent to individual property owners in the 
affected area.    

 
2. What is the effective date of the Resolution?  Can it be changed? 
 
 The proposed Resolution 903 will be effective when signed by the Mayor.  The Council 

may set an effective date by modifying Section 5 of the resolution.    
 
3. Stayton SDC Comparison with Other Oregon Cities 
 
 2013 League of Oregon Cities SDC Survey:  The League of Oregon Cities completed a 

survey of SDC charges for Oregon cities. The survey results show that Stayton’s SDC’s are 
in the mid to high-range of SDC charges for similar size communities in the State of Ore-
gon and Mid-Willamette Valley.   The following table provides a comparison of Stayton’s 
SDC charges compared to nearby, similar size or larger mid-Willamette Valley cities. 

 

City 
2013 Total SDC Charges  

(per SFR home) 

Stayton $11,065 

Linn-Benton County   

Albany $8,535 
Corvallis $12,364 
Lebanon $5,796 
Sweet Home $1,839 

Marion County  
Aumsville $16,632 
Keizer $3,210 
Salem $13,193 
Silverton $19,406 
Sublimity $10,630 
Woodburn $11,000 - $13,000** 

Polk County  

Dallas $12,347 
Independence $11,813 
Monmouth $6,536 

Yamhill County  

Newberg $16,740 
** SDCs vary depending on dwelling size, location, etc. 



 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 3 of 4 
October 21, 2013 – City Council Deliberation 

 
The Public Works staff has compiled the attached spreadsheet summarizing SDC fees for 
50+/- Oregon cities. 

 
4. What happens if the Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC fees are not charged or 

are not collected? 
 

The City will continue to pay the annual debt service for the project out of the existing 
sewer rates.   The City pays $ 188,746 annually for debt service.     

 
5. How much of current monthly sewer charge is used to pay the Mill Creek Sewer 

debt service? 
 

The currently monthly sewer user charge is $55.74 per single family home.  Of this 
amount, $ 3.60 per month is assigned for the Mill Creek Sewer debt service.  

 
6. Competitiveness of Stayton’s SDCs and are they disincentives for development? 
 

Councilor Quigley questioned whether or not Stayton’s SDCs are competitive with other 
Mid-Willamette Valley communities and if an increase in the Stayton wastewater SDC 
will serve as a disincentive to new development.  As seen by the table Stayton’s SDC 
charges are competitive.   
 
Over the past 20 years I have had numerous conversations with developers / homebuild-
ers about the use of SDC’s as a financing mechanism for public improvements caused by 
growth.  
 
a. Other Capital Funding Sources:  With the decline in the use of voter approved Gen-

eral Obligation bonds, cities now rely on Revenue Bonds (backed by user charges), 
federal/state grants and loans, and SDCs to generate money for large capital im-
provements.  Few cities are able to finance large capital projects on a pay as you go 
basis. 

 
b. Use of SDC Charges:  SDC charges are used heavily by communities with high 

growth rates because they place responsibility for expanding critical city facilities on 
the new development which generates the demand for the expansion in those public 
facilities.  

 
c. Criticism of SDC Charges by the Development Community.    Developers understand 

cities must upgrade water, sewer, storm sewers and transportation systems to serve 
new growth.  However, they prefer cities use traditional financing because it spreads 
costs among all users (new and old) and enables the developer to lower their devel-
opment costs and guarantees a profit margin.   The SDC charge that is most heavily  
criticized is the “Transportation SDC” which is based on the estimated traffic gener-
ated by a new development.  It rises sharply if a new building has high traffic vol-
umes (banks, fast food, gas stations, etc.).  The second issue raised by the develop-



 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 4 of 4 
October 21, 2013 – City Council Deliberation 

ment community is that the total SDC charge should be competitive with SDC 
charges in nearby communities.  

 
d. SDC Funds as Matching Funds for Grants:   Cities use SDC funds as seed money as 

a match for projects that are grant eligible.  In most cases, the Water Fund, Sewer 
Fund or Street Fund will not have cash readily available to serve as a grant match.  
SDC Funds are held in Reserve funds and can be easily committed by the City to 
build a project that will benefit growth areas.  The City can commit SDC funds to the 
share of a larger project that will benefit growth.  Example: The City of Stayton used 
SDC funds to finance the purchase of the 10th Avenue detention basin property.  In 
the City’s application for an Immediate Opportunity Fund grant from ODOT, we 
were able to demonstrate matching contributions of the land acquisition, Santiam 
Hospital cash contribution and Street Fund $$.   

 
OPTION(S) 
 

1. Adopt the Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Resolution.  

2. Adopt and amend Section 5 of Resolution 903 to set a different effective date. 

Proposed Language:   

Section 5.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective on the _____ 
day of _______________, 2013.  

3. Table and direct staff to modify the resolution to reduce the Mill Creek Sewer Project 
reimbursement fee.  

4. Take no action and do not adopt the resolution. 

 

MOTIONS 
 

1. Approval as Proposed:  Offer a motion to Adopt Resolution No. 903 to implement a Mill 
Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Fee.  

2. Approval with Effective Date:  Offer a motion to Amend Section 5 to establish an Effec-
tive Date on _________________, 2013 and to adopt Resolution 903 as amended.  

3. Table:     Offer a motion to table consideration of Resolution 903 and direct staff to pro-
vide additional information on the following issues: __________________________.  

4. Reject the Proposal:     No motion is necessary  



 
 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 1 of 3 
September 16, 2013 – City Council Public Hearing 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
THRU:  Christine Shaffer, Interim City Administrato r 
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  September 16, 2013 
    
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 903 – A Resolution Amending the Wastewater 

Systems Development Charge (SDC) to add a Mill Creek Sewer 
Project Reimbursement Fee 

 
ISSUE 
 
The issue before the City Council is whether or not to adopt a Resolution amending the  
Wastewater Systems Development Charges (SDC)  to add a Mill Creek Sewer Project Reim-
bursement Fee. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
The City Council will hold a public hearing at the September 16th City Council meeting to 
consider the proposed Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC and adopt then adopt the 
Resolution.   Unless there are significant issues raised at the hearing, the Public Works/Planning 
staff recommends adoption of the resolution. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
ORS 223.300 et seq. and SMC Chapter 13.12 provide the legislative authority for the City of 
Stayton to adopt and collect Systems Development Charges (SDCs) from new developments in 
the City.   
 
Before a city can adopt or update an SDC, it must complete an analysis of capital improvements 
already constructed and projected capital improvements to be constructed and adoption of a 
methodology explaining how the SDCs are calculated.  The Stayton City Council has adopted the 



 
 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 2 of 3 
September 16, 2013 – City Council Public Hearing 

City of Stayton Wastewater Master Plan (Keller Associates, 2006) which includes a list of 
completed and proposed capital improvements which affect SDCs 
 
SMC Chapter 13.12.220 (2) requires that SDC charges be set by separate Resolution of the 
Stayton City Council following a public hearing.  Notices of the hearing must be provided to 
interested parties at least 90 days prior to the hearing and the methodology must be available for 
review at least 60 days prior to the hearing.  In June 2013, the City notified the Marion-Polk 
Homebuilders Association 90 days prior to the hearing date that the City proposes to adopt the 
reimbursement fee.   The resolution, methodology and this staff report were available in the City 
Recorder’s office and on the City’s website on July 15, 2013. 
 
In 2007 the City adopted Wastewater Systems Development Charge (SDC).   The Wastewater 
SDC includes both an “improvement fee” and a “reimbursement fee”.    The SDC fee is collected 
at the time buiding permits are issued.  This proposal does not change the basic Wastewater 
SDC.   
 
Mill Creek Sewer Project: 
 
At the time the Wastewater SDC update was completed in 2007, the City was in the midst of a 
sewer improvement project to construct the Mill Creek Sewer Project.  The project included 
three components: 
 

1. Mill Creek Sewer Pump Station 
2. A sewer force main from the Mill Creek Pump Station to the wastewater treat-

ment facilities 
3. A gravity flow sewer collection main to serve the City of Sublimity and the north 

end of the Stayton Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). 
 
The project was financed with a $4,382,000 loan from the Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality (DEQ) Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) Program.  The project was 
completed and closed out in early 2008.  The final cost was $4,534,237.  The balance of the 
project costs were paid for from the City of Stayton Sewer Fund and the Sewer SDC Fund. 
 
The proposed SDC amendment sets a new Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement Fee that 
will be collected from new development inside the Stayton UGB that flows into the Mill Creek 
Sewer Pump Station.   
 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Area – SDC Reimbursement Fee  
 
The methodology indicates that 53% of the project cost will benefit new developments (growth) 
that will connect to the system.  Table 4 from the Methodology Report shows the calculations for 
the reimbursement fee for the Mill Creek Sewer Project based on the project serving an estimated 
2,362 new EDU’s.  The maximum reimbursement fee for a single family home which may be 
charged is $670.  Non-residential uses will be charged the Mill Creek SDC based on meter size.  
Multi-family residential uses will be charged at 80% of the single family dwelling SDC rate.   



 
 
Staff Report:  Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Page 3 of 3 
September 16, 2013 – City Council Public Hearing 

The City staff proposes to charge $670.00 per EDU. 
 

Table 4   
 

Mill Creek Sewer Project  
 Reimbursement Fee for the City of Stayton 

 
  

Construction Cost –  
Proportionate share benefiting new 
growth 

$1,581,402 

Estimated EDU’s in  
Mill Creek Sewer Project  Service Area 

2362 

Cost Per EDU  $    670.00 
  
Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement Fee $    670.00 

 
   
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If the proposed SDC amendments are approved then the City may generate up to $1.5 million in 
SDC reimbursement fees over the next 20 years, if the entire UGB is developed at the projected 
densities.  Realistically, the City will see a fraction of this revenue as individual properties are 
developed.   This money may be used to reimburse the Sewer Fund for debt service costs on the 
Mill Creek Sewer Project or reserved in the Sewer SDC fund for use on other eligible capital 
improvement projects.  
 
However, if the Mill Creek Sewer Project SDC reimbursement fee is not approved then current 
sewer rate payers will pay for all debt service from sewer rates and other sewer capital improve-
ments will be financed from increased sewer rates, General Obligation Bonds, Revenue Bonds, 
Local Improvement Districts, etc. 
 
OPTION(S) 
 

1. Adopt the Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC Resolution.  

2. Direct staff to modify the resolution based on testimony received at the public hearing.  

3. Take no action and do not adopt the resolution.  

  
 

 
 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 1 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

RESOLUTION NO.  903 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF STAYTON’S  
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES FOR WASTEWATER. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Stayton Systems Development Charge (SDC) Code (Stayton 
Municipal Code (SMC) Chapter 13.12), provides for the establishing of SDCs upon completion 
of an analysis of capital improvements already constructed and projected capital improvements 
to be constructed and adoption of a methodology explaining how the SDCs are calculated;  
 

WHEREAS, the SMC Chapter 13.12.220 (2) specifies that such charges shall be set by 
separate Resolution of the Stayton City Council following a public hearing;  

 
WHEREAS, the Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) provide the framework for establishing 

an SDC, and for notification and public hearing of the City of Stayton’s intent to impose SDCs; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council has adopted the City of Stayton Wastewater Master 
Plan (Keller Associates, 2006) which includes a list of completed and proposed capital 
improvements which affect SDCs;  

 
WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution 792 in February 2007 enacting a Wastewater 

Systems Development Charge; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2008, the City completed construction of the Mill Creek Pump Station, 
Force Main and Collection System improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Resolution 792 did not include either an SDC improvement fee or an SDC 
reimbursement fee for the Mill Creek Sewer Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City concludes it is appropriate to charge a reimbursement SDC to the 
properties that directly benefit from the Mill Creek sewer improvements; and  
  
 WHEREAS, the City has prepared the enclosed methodology and schedule of SDCs by 
meter size and by housing unit; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council provided written notice to interested parties and 
held a public hearing on September 16, 2013 to consider public testimony on the proposal; and,   
 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council has determined that the methodology and rates 
hereinafter specified and established are just, reasonable and necessary. 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that: 
 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 2 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

SECTION 1:  AMENDMENT AND UPDATING OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGES 
 

In accordance with SMC Chapter 13.12, this Resolution establishes the methodology and 
provides the basis for a wastewater reimbursement SDC for the Mill Creek sewer project. 

 
SECTION 2:  SCOPE 
 

The SDCs established by this Resolution are separate from, and in addition to, any other 
applicable taxes, fees, assessments, or charges, including but not limited to SDCs, which 
are required by the City of Stayton or represent a condition of a land use or development 
approval. 
 

SECTION 3:  METHODOGY 
 

The methodology for the wastewater reimbursement SDC for the Mill Creek sewer 
project is described in the attached Exhibit “A” and, by this reference, hereby made a part 
of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 4: FEE 
 
The City amends and updates its SDCs as follows: 

A “Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC” shall be assessed based upon the water meter(s) 
size installed at the development except for multiple housing units connected to a shared water 
meter.  The Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC will be imposed on those properties that 
connect to the City’s sewer collection system and flow into the Mill Creek Pump Station.  For 
multi-family housing on a shared water meter, the Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC shall 
be the greater of the number of housing units multiplied by $536 or the SDC for the meter size.   
 
The Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC collected in accordance with Chapter 13.12 of the 
Stayton Municipal Code shall be: 
 

Meter Size 
Mill Creek Sewer SDC 

Reimbursement Fee 

¾ $      670  
1 $   1,118  

1 ½ $   2,229  
2 $   3,569  
3 $   7,144  
4 $ 11,161  
6 $ 22,315  
8 $ 35,705  
   

Multiple family dwellings 
using a single meter $      536  



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 3 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

 
SECTION 5:  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
SECTION 6:  REVIEW 
 

This Resolution may be reviewed annually on or before December 1 and the rates 
amended as appropriate.   
 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this ___ day of ____________, 2013. 
 

Signed: _________________, 2013.  CITY OF STAYTON 
 
      By:  ______________________________________ 
           A. Scott Vigil, Mayor  
 
 
Signed: _________________, 2013.  Attest:  ___________________________________ 
       Christine Shaffer, City Administrator 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 4 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

Exhibit “A” 
 

City of Stayton, Oregon 
Mill Creek Sewer Project SDC 

 
Methodology for Establishment of a  

Reimbursement Fee for the Mill Creek Sewer Project 
July 2013 

 
 
 
Stayton Wastewater Master Plan and Wastewater SDC: 
 
The City of Stayton adopted the City of Stayton Wastewater Master Plan (Keller Associates, 2006) to 
serve as the capital improvement planning study for the City of Stayton wastewater treatment and 
collection system.   As part of the preparation of the Wastewater Master Plan, Keller Associates 
subcontracted with Economic & Financial Analysis, a financial consulting firm to update the City’s 
wastewater systems development charge (SDC).   In February 2007, the City Council adopted Resolution 
792 updating the City’s Wastewater SDC.   
 
 
Mill Creek Sewer Project: 
 
At the time the Wastewater SDC update was completed in 2007, the City was in the midst of a sewer 
improvement project to construct the Mill Creek Sewer Project.  The project included three components: 
 

1. Mill Creek Sewer Pump Station 
2. A sewer force main from the Mill Creek Pump Station to the wastewater treatment 

facilities 
3. A gravity flow sewer collection main to serve the City of Sublimity and the north end of 

the Stayton Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). 
 
The project was financed with a $4,382,000 loan from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 
(DEQ) Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) Program.  The project was completed and closed 
out in early 2008.  The final cost was $4,534,237.  The balance of the project costs were paid for from the 
City of Stayton Sewer Fund and the Sewer SDC Fund. 
 
The Mill Creek project provides a sewer collection system which serves the City of Sublimity and the 
northern portion of Stayton’s Urban Growth Area.  Therefore the costs of the project are shared by the 
cities of Stayton and Sublimity.     
 
The Mill Creek project was broken up into two separate design elements, Phase 1 and Phase 1A, in order 
to isolate project components and distinguish the benefits provided to each city.   
 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 5 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

Phase 1: The Phase 1 project includes the Mill Creek Pump Station, a force main from the 
Mill Creek Pump Station to the wastewater treatment facilities and a portion of the 
gravity collection system that flows from the connection to the Sublimity system to 
the Mill Creek Pump Station.   This project benefits the City of Sublimity and 
properties in the northern portion of Stayton’s UGB.  Therefore, the costs of Phase 
1 are shared by the cities of Stayton and Sublimity. 

 
 The City of Sublimity agreed to pay a proportionate share of the project costs for 

the Phase 1 Area of the project because it directly benefits the City of Sublimity 
and its customers.   Keller Associates determined that existing and future 
development in Sublimity will utilize 44% of the capacity of the improvements. 
The Sublimity share of $1,476,200 is approximately 44% of the Phase 1 project 
costs.  Under terms of the Stayton-Sublimity Sewer Agreement, Stayton bills the 
City of Sublimity a monthly charge for Sublimity’s proportionate share of the debt 
service costs. 

 
Phase 1A: The Phase 1A project includes the sewer collection system that serves the northern 

section of the Stayton UGB.   This sewer collection system benefits properties 
entirely within Stayton’s UGB.  Keller Associates determined that 100% of the 
Phase 1A project costs benefit existing sewer users and future development inside 
the Stayton UGB. 

 
 
Methodology for the Mill Creek Reimbursement SDC 
 
The Mill Creek Reimbursement SDC is designed to meet the requirements of Oregon statutes (ORS 
223.297 to 223.314) and to comply with the Chapter 13.12 of the Stayton Municipal Code.  The City’s 
water SDC update and wastewater SDC update in 2007 describe these statutory requirements. 
 
The Mill Creek Reimbursement SDC is calculated to reimburse the City for a proportionate share of the 
costs incurred for the design and construction of the Mill Creek Sewer Project that will directly benefit 
new growth and development which has not connected to the system and is inside the Stayton Urban 
Growth Boundary (UGB).   The fee is based on the original cost of the Mill Creek Sewer Project that was 
paid for by the City using the DEQ SRF loan and city funds.  No portion of the project was paid for with 
federal or state grants.    
 
I. Mill Creek Sewer Project Service Area inside Stayton UGB 
 
The proposed Mill Creek Reimbursement SDC applies only to new development within the Stayton UGB 
that will be directly connected to the sewer collection system that flows to the Mill Creek Pump Station.  
 
The Mill Creek Sewer Project serves approximately 1,013 acres inside the Stayton UGB, as shown on 
Exhibit “A”.  The Stayton service area includes (1) properties inside the city limits which have existing 
development connected to the sewer system, (2) vacant undeveloped properties inside the city and outside 
the city limits, (3) partially developed lands inside and outside the Stayton city limits that have buildings 
which are not connected to the sewer system, (4) partially developed lands inside and outside the Stayton 
city limits that have vacant land and the potential for redevelopment or additional development; and (5) 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 6 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

public or undeveloped lands that are not likely to be developed (e.g. public school open space, and 
wetlands).   
 
II. 2007 Wastewater SDC (Mill Creek Project excluded from SDC Calculations) 
 
The City established its Wastewater SDC in 2007.  The Wastewater SDC includes both a reimbursement 
fee and improvement fee.   The Wastewater System Development Charge Update (Economic & Financial 
Analysis, January 29, 2007) was used as the basis for setting the Wastewater SDC.   The City reviewed 
the report and verified that the Mill Creek Project was not included in the Wastewater SDC calculations1.  
The proposed Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement SDC does not duplicate any existing SDC charges. 
 
 
III. Mill Creek Sewer Project Capacity and Flow Reserved for Growth 
 
Keller Associates was asked to evaluate sewer flows from existing users in Stayton and Sublimity, 
estimate future sewer flows and establish the design capacity of the Mill Creek Sewer Project.    
 
Prior to construction of the Mill Creek Sewer Project Keller Associates established the design capacities 
for the Mill Creek Pump Station and Phase 1 collection system.  At that time Keller Associates estimated 
Sublimity’s 2007 sewer flows from existing development and future flows from new growth will use 44% 
of the system’s design capacity.  Keller Associates also estimated Stayton’s sewer flows from existing 
development and future flows within the Mill Creek Sewer Project service area will use 56% of the 
design capacity.  Keller’s analysis at the time of design concluded 53% of Stayton share of the Phase 1 
improvements was reserved for growth and 49.5% of the Phase 1A collection system was reserved for 
growth. 
 
In 2013, the City’s Planning Department and Keller Associates reviewed the original design assumptions 
and information on the project provided by the City.  Several factors and pieces of information were 
considered, including: 
 

1. Actual construction costs of the Mill Creek Sewer Project versus 2005 budget estimates. 

2. Number of housing units (33) connected to the Mill Creek Sewer from 2007 to 2013.  

3. A review of available buildable acres by zoning district using 2013 zoning maps. 

4. A review of original design assumptions, design capacity and future flows within the Mill 
Creek Sewer Project Service Area. 

 
The City’s and Keller’s 2013 review found that the original design assumptions for the Mill Creek Pump 
Station, existing flows and future flow capacities did not change.  Keller also recommended an allocation 
of Phase 1 and Phase 1A costs based on actual construction costs.  The 2013 update concludes 52.9% of 
the Stayton share of the Phase 1 improvements is reserved for growth and 49.5% of the Phase 1A 
collection system is reserved for growth in Stayton.   
 

                                                 
1  Stayton Wastewater SDC Resolution 792, Wastewater System Development Charge Update (Economic & Financial Analysis (January 29, 
2007).   See Table 5 – “List of Capital Improvements, Capacity and Allocation to Growth”:  The Mill Creek Sewer Project is listed as “Funded - 
$4,482,000”, but is not included in the improvement fee calculations.   See Appendix  -- “List of Capital Assets, Depreciation and Book Value for 
the City of Stayton Wastewater System.”:  The Mill Creek Project is not listed as an existing capital asset.   These assets were used to calculate 
the Wastewater Reimbursement Fee. 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 7 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

Table 1 provides a summary of Keller’s and the City’s conclusions. 
 

Table 1 
Mill Creek Sewer Project 

Flow Reserved for Growth 

 
PHASE 1 PHASE 1A 

Project Component 
Mill Creek  

Pump Station 

& Force Main 

Mill Creek 

 Gravity Sewer 

Stayton UGB 

Gravity Sewer 

    
Capacity (gpm) 3,250 4,415 1,843 

    

Flow Reserved for Sublimity (44% of Capacity) 1,430 1,943        0   

    

Flow Reserved for Stayton (56% of Capacity) 1,820 2,472 1,843 

Existing Stayton Peak Hour Flow (gpm) (   930) (   930) (   930) 

Flow Reserved for Stayton Growth     890 1,542     913 

    

% Flow Reserved for Stayton Growth  48.9% 62.4% 49.5% 

   

% Flow Reserved for Stayton Growth (Weighted Average) for Phase 1 52.9%  

 
 
IV. Construction Cost Assessed to Growth 
 
The actual construction cost of the Mill Creek Sewer Project was $4,534,237.  Of this amount, 
$1,581,402 (35%) can be assigned to future growth in Stayton.  Table 2 reviews the construction costs for 
the project and the share of Phase 1 and Phase 1A which can be allocated to growth within Stayton’s 
UGB. 
 

Table 2 
Mill Creek Sewer Project 

Actual Costs of Project and Allocation of Costs to Growth 

 
 Phase 1 Phase 1A TOTALS 

Construction $3,116,223 $915,927 $4,032,150 

Engineering 204,533 125,220 329,753 

Land Acquisition & Easements 121,788 50,545 172,333   

Total Project Cost $3,442,545 $1,091,692 $4,534,237 

Less Sublimity Share (Phase 1 only) (1,476,200)  (1,476,200) 

Stayton Share of Project Costs $1,966,345 $1,091,692 $3,058,037 

% of Stayton’s Share Reserved for Growth     52.9% 49.5%  

Project Cost to be Used for SDC Reimbursement Fee $1,040,591 $540,811 $1,581,402 

 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 8 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

V. Land Use Analysis and Estimated Growth in Mill Creek Sewer Project Area 
 
The City of Stayton Planning Department calculated the number of equivalent dwelling units which can 
be developed inside the Mill Creek Sewer Project service area inside the Stayton UGB.  This area is 
shown on Exhibit “A”.  The City looked at each tax parcel in the service area and determined whether the 
parcel was vacant, fully developed, or had redevelopment potential.  The number of potential new units 
on each parcel was calculated based on the land use designation, the number of buildable acres, and then 
multiplying the parcel acreage by the number of equivalent dwelling units which can be developed when 
the property is annexed and developed under existing zoning/subdivision regulations.  For land outside 
the city limits, it was assumed that it would be zoned Low Density Residential when annexed. 
  

Table 3   
Estimated EDUs in Mill Creek Project Area 

 

Land Use # of Acres 
Net Units  

Per Acre 

Equivalent 

Dwelling Units 

(EDU) 

Single Family Residential- vacant* 324 4.20 1,244 

Single Family Residential- redevelopment** 289 3.60 1,040 

Multi-Family Residential     4 13.0 52 

Commercial*** 17 1.17 20 

Public**** 32  6 

TOTALS 667  2,362 

 
* The 324 acres includes 25 acres of wetland.  The wetlands are not available for 

development.  The remaining 299 acres of vacant land are considered buildable.  The 

City of Stayton Planning staff analyzed the development/redevelopment potential of 

lots on a parcel-by-parcel basis to determine the number of housing units which could 

be added on each parcel if the parcels were developed at a density 4.2 units per acre.  

Due to odd-shaped parcels and rounding, this analysis resulted in the determination 

that 1,244 housing units may be built on the 299 acres.    

** The 289 acres includes parcels with existing structures. The City of Stayton Planning 

staff analyzed the development/redevelopment potential of lots on a parcel-by-parcel 

basis to determine the number of housing units which could be added on each parcel 

if the parcels were subdivided and/or redeveloped at a density 4.2 units per acre, 

after subtracting 20,000 sq. ft. for the existing home on parcels that have existing 

homes.  This resulted in an overall density of 3.6 units per acre on the 289 acres and 

the addition of 1,040 units.    

*** Commercial sites were evaluated on a parcel-by-parcel basis. There are 5 small lots 

zoned for commercial use which the City estimates will have 1.0 EDU each.  Two 

larger parcels are zoned Interchanged Development and have been planned for the 

development of a hotel/motel (10 EDU) and a family restaurant (5 EDU). 

**** Additional development in the P zone based on assumption that existing uses on the 

Stayton Middle School and Foothills Church parcels will each increase by 50%. 

 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 9 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

VI. Mill Creek Sewer Project Area – SDC Reimbursement Fee  
 
Table 4 shows the calculations for the reimbursement fee for the Mill Creek Sewer Project based on the 
project serving an estimated 2,362 new EDU’s.  The maximum reimbursement fee which may be charged 
is $670.  The City proposes to charge $670.00 per EDU. 
 

Table 4   
 

Mill Creek Sewer Project  

 Reimbursement Fee for the City of Stayton 

 
  

Construction Cost –  

Proportionate share benefiting new growth $1,581,402 

Estimated EDU’s in  

Mill Creek Sewer Project  Service Area 2362 

Cost Per EDU  $    670.00 

  

Mill Creek Sewer Reimbursement Fee $    670.00 

 
Non-residential uses will be charged the Mill Creek SDC based on meter size.  Multi-family residential 
uses will be charged at 80% of the single family dwelling SDC rate.  The methodology for the 
Wastewater SDC includes the following discussion of demand by water meter size: 
 

“The average household produces 675 gallons of sewage per day.  Stayton’s sewer system is 

designed to meet peak daily sewage flows.  These flows are currently estimated at 442 gallons 

per capita per day (see page 3-11 Table 3.6, [City of Stayton Wastewater] Collection Facilities 

Planning Study, February 2006). The wastewater SDC is based on future development 

contributing only 250 gallons per capita per day [gpcd] (ibid., Table 3.6), about 43 percent less 

than the current flow.  The 250 gpcd is based on “ . . . a future I/I allowance of 100 gpcd was 

agreed upon [by the City and DEQ] as appropriate for the Stayton/Sublimity area given the 

nature of the climate, high water table, and geography of the study area” (ibid., page 3-10, 

subsection 3.4.2¶ 4).  Most single-family households upon which the 675 gallons of usage is 

based use a ¾-inch water meter. . .” 

 

As meter sizes increases for residential and non-residential customers, the amount of sewage 

flow also increases.  Similar to the water SDC, the wastewater SDC varies by meter size based on 

the capacity of the meter with one exception.   The exception is multi-family households in which 

several housing units are connected to a single meter, usually larger than ¾-inch.  For these uses, 

the reimbursement fee is based on the number of housing units multiplied by . . . 80% of the 

reimbursement fee for a ¾-inch meter.  Multi-family households use less water and produce 20% 

less sewage than a single-family house.” 

 
Table 5 summarizes the reimbursement fee by meter size and for multi-family dwellings. 

 



 
Resolution No. 903  Page 10 of 10 
Mill Creek Sewer Project Reimbursement SDC  

 Table 5   
Mill Creek Project Sewer SDC by Meter Size 

 

Meter Size Equivalent ¾ Meters 
Mill Creek Sewer SDC 

Reimbursement Fee 

    
 ¾ 1.00 $      670  
1     1.67 $   1,118  

1 ½ 3.33 $   2,229  
2     5.33 $   3,569  
3     10.67 $   7,144  
4     16.67 $ 11,161  
6     33.33 $ 22,315  
8     53.33 $ 35,705  
    

Multiple family 
dwellings using a single 
meter, per dwelling unit 80% $      536  

     
 





City Water Sewer Storm Transport. Parks Total 2010 Pop.
1 Ontario $0 $0 $1,288 $1,288  11,366 

2 Pendleton $1,050 $276 $1,326  16,612 

3 Sweet Home $1,215 $624 $1,839  8,925 

4 Tillamook $1,290 $1,225 $2,515  4,935 

5 Clatskanie $1,250 $1,500 $2,750  1,737 

6 Keizer $880 $1,170 $1,160 $3,210  36,478 

7 Turner $2,057 $1,803 $479 $895 $5,234  1,854 

8 Coquille $1,901 $2,951 $228 $280 $289 $5,649  3,866 

9 Lebanon $1,250 $3,248 $160 $437 $701 $5,796  15,518 

10 Monmouth $1,498 $2,918 $0 $394 $1,726 $6,536  9,534 

11 Sisters $2,053 $2,968 $1,016 $613 $6,650  2,038 

12 Coburg $3,312 $728 $2,835 $6,875  1,737 

13 Fairview $2,698 $2,401 $395 $1,522 $7,016  8,920 

14 Sandy $1,943 $1,834 $1,943 $2,336 $8,056  9,570 

15 Albany $2,123 $2,519 $2,148 $1,745 $8,535  50,158 

16 Roseburg $2,052 $2,082 $940 $2,954 $550 $8,578  21,181 

17 Cottage Grove $3,792 $766 $694 $1,680 $1,901 $8,833  9,686 

18 Prineville $2,477 $4,089 $2,601 $9,167  9,253 

19 Milwaukie $1,559 $893 $1,184 $1,676 $3,895 $9,207  20,291 

20 Brownsville $2,095 $5,160 $1,970 $9,225  1,668 

21 Newport $1,632 $3,425 $739 $959 $2,516 $9,271  9,989 

22 Wood Village $1,524 $7,794 $9,318  3,878 

23 Medford $948 $1,212 $574 $3,664 $3,433 $9,831  74,907 

24 Eugene $3,312 $576 $557 $1,792 $3,757 $9,994  156,185 

25 Junction City $1,100 $6,849 $1,116 $1,090 $10,155  5,392 

26 Florence $3,557 $4,456 $2,050 $865 $10,928

27 Lincoln City $2,741 $5,724 $0 $643 $1,850 $10,958  7,930 

28 Woodburn varies varies varies varies varies $11,000-$13,000

29 Stayton $2,670 $3,528 $2,562 $2,305 $11,065  7,644 

30
Pacific City Joint Water & 
Sanitary District

$6,027 $5,747 $11,774

31 Independence $2,445 $3,573 $823 $3,231 $1,741 $11,813

32 Creswell $5,277 $4,746 $627 $1,539 $12,189  5,031 

33 Dallas $3,940 $4,027 $932 $1,167 $2,281 $12,347

34 Corvallis $1,122 $3,492 $82 $2,471 $5,197 $12,364  54,462 

35 Ashland $4,264 $4,264 $760 $2,044 $1,041 $12,372  20,078 

36 North Plains $4,298 $3,200 $500 $518 $3,910 $12,426  1,947 

37 Madras $1,157 $6,557 $64 $3,208 $1,639 $12,625  6,046 

38 Tigard $500 $3,100 $500 $3,440 $5,215 $12,755  48,035 

Systems Development Charges 
Comparison of SDC Charges for Oregon Cities

Compiled from 2013 League of Oregon Cities Survey Data

Source:  League of Oregon Cities 2013 SDC Survey; City of Woodburn; 
1 of 2

9/19/2013



City Water Sewer Storm Transport. Parks Total 2010 Pop.

Systems Development Charges 
Comparison of SDC Charges for Oregon Cities

Compiled from 2013 League of Oregon Cities Survey Data

39 Salem $3,907 $3,093 $494 $1,954 $3,745 $13,193       156,455 

40 Veneta $1,937 $6,264 $168 $2,024 $2,888 $13,281  4,561 

41 Troutdale $1,326 $4,426 $852 $7,137 $13,741  15,962 

42 Redmond $2,407 $3,366 $2,301 $3,876 $2,672 $14,622  26,215 

43 Oregon City $4,495 $3,732 $650 $2,606 $3,422 $14,905  31,859 

44 Springfield $3,312 $5,470 $1,887 $1,278 $3,499 $15,446  59,403 

45 Canby $5,933 $2,337 $100 $2,440 $4,725 $15,535  15,829 

46 Brookings $2,222 $9,646 $959 $1,210 $1,578 $15,615  6,336 

47 West Linn $4,628 $2,633 $456 $4,897 $3,030 $15,644  25,109 

48 Forest Grove $4,000 $1,240 $500 $3,600 $6,888 $16,228  21,083 

49 Aumsville $3,979 $5,291 $1,050 $3,701 $2,611 $16,632  3,584 

50 Gresham $4,153 $5,056 $824 $2,795 $3,837 $16,665  105,594 

51 Newberg $5,837 $5,666 $311 $2,909 $2,017 $16,740         22,300 

52 Bend $4,520 $2,840 $4,574 $5,050 $16,984  76,639 

53 Hillsboro $6,146 $3,100 $500 $3,600 $4,083 $17,429  91,611 

54 Tualatin $3,397 $4,665 $275 $6,665 $3,892 $18,894  26,054 

55 Silverton $5,043 $4,731 $2,070 $3,057 $4,505 $19,406  9,222 

56 Beaverton $4,953 $4,665 $945 $6,665 $5,247 $22,475  89,803 

57 Wilsonville $7,002 $4,233 $780 $6,340 $4,602 $22,957  19,509 

58 Lake Oswego $6,763 $2,463 $135 $4,195 $11,650 $25,206  36,619 

Source:  League of Oregon Cities 2013 SDC Survey; City of Woodburn; 
2 of 2

9/19/2013



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Christine Shaffer, Finance Director 
 
DATE: October 21, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Finance Department Report   
      
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City.  I have 
identified the following funds as the major operating funds:  General Fund, Public Works 
Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Street Fund and Swimming 
Pool Fund.  If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Departmental activity: 
 
Utility Billing:           September 2013                           July 2013 
 Number of Bills sent out      2,650                                 2,729 
 Delinquent Notices sent out        505                              457 
 Courtesy Delinquent Notices sent to Landlords      235                  218 
           Notified of Impending Shut off & Penalty                127                                    149 

Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment    15          21 
           Services still Disconnected                                            0                                        0 
 
Accounts Payable: 
 Number of Checks Issued                    156        160 
 Total Amount of Checks                $393,311.59               $505,971.84 
 
 
 
  



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

GENERAL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 36,835.67 1,671,970.00 1,635,134.33 2.2

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 704.00 7,200.00 6,496.00 9.8

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

FRANCHISE FEES 198,289.92 767,000.00 568,710.08 25.9

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 7,602.88 16,000.00 8,397.12 47.5

FINES & FORFEITURES 13,696.58 40,500.00 26,803.42 33.8

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 36,270.40 166,400.00 130,129.60 21.8

INTEREST 106.21 500.00 393.79 21.2

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 99,148.45 392,195.00 293,046.55 25.3

392,654.11 3,063,265.00 2,670,610.89 12.8

EXPENDITURES

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 78,354.90 404,000.00 325,645.10 19.4

ADMINISTRATION 76,021.75 429,356.00 353,334.25 17.7

POLICE 525,581.95 1,915,047.00 1,389,465.05 27.4

PLANNING 31,180.22 157,771.00 126,590.78 19.8

COMMUNITY CENTER 14,369.21 58,398.00 44,028.79 24.6

PARKS 44,617.97 152,706.00 108,088.03 29.2

STREET LIGHTING 17,044.95 116,685.00 99,640.05 14.6

787,170.95 3,233,963.00 2,446,792.05 24.3



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

INTEREST 13.75 100.00 86.25 13.8

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 103,250.00 414,000.00 310,750.00 24.9

103,263.75 414,100.00 310,836.25 24.9

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 106,099.14 429,908.00 323,808.86 24.7

106,099.14 429,908.00 323,808.86 24.7



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

LIBRARY FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 2,972.28 145,000.00 142,027.72 2.1

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 20,207.25 78,883.00 58,675.75 25.6

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 205.00 25,200.00 24,995.00 .8

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 4,331.00 13,500.00 9,169.00 32.1

FINES & FORFEITURES 4,135.84 15,000.00 10,864.16 27.6

INTERGOVERNMENTAL .00 1,339.00 1,339.00 .0

INTEREST 37.91 400.00 362.09 9.5

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 29,875.00 120,500.00 90,625.00 24.8

61,764.28 399,822.00 338,057.72 15.5

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 112,377.97 468,189.00 355,811.03 24.0

112,377.97 468,189.00 355,811.03 24.0



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 4

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 664,776.49 1,745,000.00 1,080,223.51 38.1

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 9,533.87 29,000.00 19,466.13 32.9

INTEREST 946.95 3,500.00 2,553.05 27.1

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 1,123.90 11,000.00 9,876.10 10.2

676,381.21 1,788,500.00 1,112,118.79 37.8

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 360,434.20 1,952,300.00 1,591,865.80 18.5

360,434.20 1,952,300.00 1,591,865.80 18.5



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 5

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 710,133.60 2,866,680.00 2,156,546.40 24.8

INTEREST 3,088.44 9,000.00 5,911.56 34.3

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 312.90 12,500.00 12,187.10 2.5

713,534.94 2,888,180.00 2,174,645.06 24.7

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 955,889.48 3,459,805.00 2,503,915.52 27.6

955,889.48 3,459,805.00 2,503,915.52 27.6



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

STREET FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 6

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 21,508.12 84,000.00 62,491.88 25.6

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 107,191.37 481,269.00 374,077.63 22.3

INTEREST 222.89 200.00 (                     22.89) 111.5

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 16,785.48 70,250.00 53,464.52 23.9

145,707.86 635,719.00 490,011.14 22.9

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 122,663.04 659,063.00 536,399.96 18.6

122,663.04 659,063.00 536,399.96 18.6



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

SWIMMING POOL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 10/16/2013     11:29AM       PAGE: 7

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 3,394.34 149,000.00 145,605.66 2.3

INTEREST 88.26 250.00 161.74 35.3

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 3,750.00 15,000.00 11,250.00 25.0

7,232.60 164,250.00 157,017.40 4.4

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 84,560.37 233,057.00 148,496.63 36.3

84,560.37 233,057.00 148,496.63 36.3



 

 
 
M E M O R A N D U M  
 

TO:                Mayor Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:            Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:      Monthly Crime Rate Comparison Statistical Sheets 
   
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of September.   
 
 September

2013 
Year to Date 

2013 
September

2012 
Year to Date 

2012 
     
Police Activity 830 7590 830 7276 
     
Investigated Incidents 367 3214 380 3221 
     
Citations/Warning 290 2296 299 2418 
     
Traffic Accidents 12 71 11 98 
     
Arrests 70 711 73 689 
     
Reserve Volunteer Hours 330.3 3234.3 N/A N/A 
     
Citizen Volunteer Hours 21 372.75 N/A N/A 
     
Peer Court Referrals: 7 27 9 45 
        
        
 







 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 of 1 
October 21, 2013 

   
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT 
 
 
 
 

TO:       Mayor A. Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council  
 
FROM:  Jennifer Russell, Administrative Assistant 
 
THRU:  Dave Kinney, Public Works Director 
       
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   September Monthly Operating Report 
 
 
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
 WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 31.14 million gallons were treated during September. The 

highest flow was 2.01 million gallons on September 30th, and the lowest flow 
was 0.74 million gallons on September 1st. The average flow was 1.04 million 
gallons. Total rainfall for August was 7.72 inches. 20.91 tons of dewatered 
biosolids were produced. 

 
 WTP Highest production day was 6,026,000 on the September 14th. 
 
 Water System Replaced 5 meters and installed 36 water meter radios. At 530 W. Ida, the 

water service was replaced. Cleaned number three filter bed. Flushed the 
hydrants in Quail Run. Installed water sample line at the Water Plant for 
combined turbidity of filter beds before treatment. 

 
 Streets  Swept 121 curb miles and removed approximately 60 cubic yards of material. 

Completed Fourth Street paving project.  
   
 Parks Volunteers: SHS Life Skills – 25 Hours; Court Ordered – 15 hours. Filed 5-year 

report on Riverfront Park to OWEB. 
 

 Building Permits   
            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling 0 0 
Residential Building Addition/Alteration/Other 1 0 
Commercial Building Addition/Alteration/Other 0 0 
Electrical 1 0 
Mechanical  1 0 
Plumbing 1 0 

TOTAL 4 0 
One (1) Residential SDC = $11,065 
 













 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
  

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 

TO:   Mayor Scott Vigil and the Stayton City Council 
    
THRU:  Interim City Administrator Christine Shaffer 
 
FROM:  David W. Kinney, Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  October 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  Burnett Street Fence  
              
 
ISSUE 
 
An existing wood fence in the E. Burnett Street right-of-way is falling apart and needs to be either 
removed or repaired. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
There is an existing 6’ tall wood fence located in the E. Burnett Street right-of-way east of 10th 
Avenue that has several sections which have broken out or are falling apart.    
 
In the summer one 6’ section broke apart and fell into the street; the City public works staff picked 
up the section and set it inside the fence line.  Since then the police department and public works 
department have received several complaints about the condition of the fence and asked when the 
City would make repairs.  No repairs have been made and will not be made until after discussion 
with the City Council. 
 
In the mid-1990’s the developers of the Pioneer Meadows subdivision constructed the Phase 2 of 
the Pioneer Meadows subdivision between 9th Avenue and 15th Avenue.  As part of the 
development the City required the developer to install a 2/3 street between 10th Avenue and 12th 
Avenue.  The City Council added a condition of approval requiring the construction of a 6’ site 
obscuring fence on the south side of E. Burnett St. adjacent to two lots that were not part of the 
subdivision and are outside the City. 
 

• The developer installed the fence as required by the City Council. 

 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
RCA  E. Burnett Fence  Page 1 of 2  



 
October 21, 2013 Memo to City Council 
RCA – E. Burnett Fence  Page 2 of 2  
 

• The fence was installed 6’ north of the private properties in the E. Burnett St. right of way. 

• The fence was intended to be a visual barrier between the subdivision and two adjacent lots 
which were not well maintained in the mid-1990s. 

• The fence was expected to be a short-term solution until the two parcels were annexed into 
the City and built new homes facing E. Burnett St.   The fence will not be needed then.  

• No homeowners association was established to provide on-going financing for the 
maintenance and/or replacement of the fence. 

• The City has done minor maintenance to the fence.  When a few panels broke 5 or so years 
ago, the public works staff has repaired the panels and stabilized the supports. 

 
OPTIONS: 
 
There are several options for the repair or removal of the fence. 
 

1. Do nothing. Maintenance of fencing next to private properties is the property owner 
responsibility. 

 
2. City public works crews repair the fence on an as needed basis since it is located in 

the public right-of-way. 
 

3. A volunteer group (e.g. ISERVE or some other group) repair or replace sections of 
the fence with the City providing materials. 

 
4. Remove the fence from the right-of-way. The property owners to the south can then 

install a privacy fence or security fence as they desire on their property line 
approximately 5 feet from the current fence location. 

 



Planning and Development Monthly Report, March 2011 Page 1 of 1 

City of Stayton 
 

 

Planning and Development Department 
Mailing address:  362 N. Third Avenue·  Stayton, OR 97383 

Office location: 311 N. Third Avenue 

Phone:  (503) 769-2998  ·  FAX: (503) 767-2134 

email:  dfleishman@ci.stayton.or.us 

www.staytonoregon.gov 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Scott Vigil and City Council Members 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 

 DATE: October 21, 2013 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for September, 2013 

 

 

Enforcement Activity Highlights 

Signs removed from 1
st
 Ave right of way 

Violation notice sent to Produce Patch 

Planning & Development Activity Summary 

Participated in mediation sessions regarding SWCD lawsuit. 

Developed Storm Water Utility fee model. 

Reviewed 5 building permit applications. 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information System 

continued. 



 
 M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

                                     

TO:  Mayor Scott Vigil and Stayton City Councilors  
 
FROM: Louise Meyers 
 
DATE: October 21, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: Library Director’s Report, September Activities 
  
 
 

Updates: 
 
The Friends of the Library has received a grant from the Marion Cultural Development 
Corporation, and we will offer a series of Oregon author visits. The first visit, by author Cathy 
Lamb was held on October 5th, and was very successful. Many people who attended said they are 
looking forward to the rest of the series. The next author scheduled is William Sullivan, author of 
many hiking guides. He will discuss his book, Hiking Oregon’s History on November 16th at 7 
pm. 
 
A new activity we are having fun with is “Seek the Unknown”. We have books for children, teen 
and adult, wrapped in brown paper, with keyword clues to the story, and anyone who takes a 
chance and checks out a book does not know what they are getting. It is a fun way to get people 
to read things they may not have otherwise chosen. It is very popular. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHECKOUTS 12,712 12,114 10,667 35,583 35,493 0%

Non-resident cards             $917.00 $1,760.00 $342.00 $2,045.00 $3,019.00 48%

Fines: overdue books        $888.54 $2,337.97 $909.43 $4,688.00 $4,135.94 -12%

Room fees                        $177.00 $108.00 $1,027.00 $635.00 $1,312.00 107%

Total $7,368.00 $8,466.94 15%

REFERENCE QUESTIONS

Reference questions 645 585 476 1,548 1,706 10%

Telephone 356 393 374 938 1,123 20%

Total 2,486 2,829 14%

INTERNET USE 1,940 1,900 1,502 5,235 5,342 2%

PROGRAM ATTENDANCE

Children/teens 517 379 174 1,026 1,070 4%

Adults 223 154 130 450 507 13%

Outreach 80 0 195 287 275 -4%

Total 1,763 1,852 5%

MEETING ROOM 
ATTENDANCE

1,195 1,033 571 2,175 2,799 29%

PATRON VISITS 9,317 8,445 6,881 24,263 24,643 2%

INCOME Received

2013 - 2014 Monthly Library Statistics 
March April

% 
Change

2012-13JuneMaySept. 2013-14 YTDJuly August Feb.Dec. Jan.Oct. Nov.



Ob j e c t i v e  

To volunteer and get involved with my local community. 

 

E d u c a t i o n  

2006‐2008 , General Education, Brigham Young University 

2011‐2013, AAOT, Chemeketa Community College 

 

P o s i t i o n s  H e l d  

2009 – Present 

Salem Contractors Exchange 

Started in the backroom making blueprint copies.  Looked for commercial construction 

projects around Oregon and Southwest Washington.  Have recently been promoted to 

Marketing Manager.   

2009 ‐ 2009 

UPS Worker 

Seasonal Help at Christmas Time.  

2004 ‐ 2006 

Figaros Pizza 

Make pizzas, work cash register, and close store at night.   

 

P r o f e s s i o n a l  O r g a n i z a t i o n s  

SEDCOR Construction Alliance Executive Board Member 

NAWIC Construction Career Days  Member 

 

V o l u n t e e r   E x p e r i e n c e  

Advisor in Youth Program at the Stayton LDS Church 

 

C omp u t e r   S k i l l s  

Microsoft Office, Publisher, Adobe, and Social Media. 

Em a i l   f o r   R e f e r e n c e s  

 

Janai Hill 

1841 E Santiam St 

Stayton, OR 97383 

Phone: 503‐510‐5844 

E‐mail: janai@sceonline.org 


	10-2013
	Riverfront Park 5 Year Report Final New
	Signed Riverfront Park Report




